ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 27, 2015
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative David Tal erico
Representative Liz Vazquez
Representative Loui se Stutes
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Ji m Col ver

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 65

"An Act relating to the disclosure of financial information by
persons who are subject to the Legislative Ethics Act and by
certain public officers, public enployees, and candidates for
public office."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 43
"An Act establishing Al aska Law Enforcenent O ficers' Day."

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 2/ 3/ 15
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 65

SHORT TITLE: LEG /PUB. OFFI Cl AL FI NANCI AL DI SCLOSURE
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER

01/ 21/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (H STA, JUD
01/ 27/ 15 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 27, 2015



W TNESS REG STER

JULI LUCKY, Staff

Representati ve M ke Hawker

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 65 on behalf of Representative
Hawker, prinme sponsor.

JOAN M ZE, Project Coordinator

Regul ati on of Lobbying

Juneau O fice

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information regarding disclosure
| aw during the hearing on HB 65.

PAUL DAUPHI NAI S, Executive Director

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Clarified points of discussion during the
hearing on HB 65.

JERRY ANDERSON, Admi ni strator

Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information during the hearing on
HB 65.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:03: 50 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmmittee
nmeeting to order at 8:03 a.m Representatives Keller, Stutes,
Tal eri co, Vazquez, and Lynn were present at the call to order.

Representative Gruenberg arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 65- LEG / PUB. OFFI Cl AL FI NANCI AL DI SCLOSURE

8:04:13 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the only order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO. 65, "An Act relating to the disclosure of financial
information by persons who are subject to the Legislative Ethics
Act and by certain public officers, public enployees, and
candi dates for public office.™

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 27, 2015



8:04:34 AM

JULI LUCKY, Staff, Representative M ke Hawker, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented HB 65 on behalf of Representative Hawker,
prime sponsor. She explained that the proposed |egislation
would extend the deadline for the legislative financial
di scl osure (LFD) and public official financial disclosure (POFD)
from the current date of March 15 to April 30. She said the
change would not affect the content of the reports, change
deadlines for any other reports other than the annual financia
di scl osure, and would not affect any canpaign reporting
deadl i nes or content requirenents. In response to Chair Lynn,
she said the reason for the proposed change is that people
gather information for the April 15 federal tax deadline, and
t he sponsor believes that that information is the best and nost
accurate information for filling out the disclosures. I n
response to a foll owup question, she said sone people have very
conplex filings, and the proposed bill would allow them to have
that final federal tax filing information at their disposal.

8:06: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noted that "incone" is defined as "any
noney that a person sees.” He said he is contenplating an
anendnent to change that definition to "profit" or "net instead
of gross.” He explained that there are a lot of snal
busi nesses that receive hundreds of checks for services, and all
t hose checks would have to be reported as incone. He offered

his understanding that all those checks are not really incone,
whi ch he said he thinks is just profit.

8:07:59 AM

M5. LUCKY responded that she does not think the sponsor would
have a problem with such an anmendnent; however, she recommended
heari ng feedback from a representative of APOC to nake sure the
accuracy of the reports would not be affected.

8:08:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ said she would like to see the deadline
extended to May 15 to allow breathing room for |egislators who
have just finished a session and to take into account tinme for
speci al sessions. She said she agrees that the deadline should
be after income taxes are filed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 27, 2015



8:09:01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER pointed out that the section of |aw
related to the disclosure applies not only to legislators, but
al so to people who serve on boards and comm ssions, many of whom
volunteer hours of their tinme but "have to go through this
indignity of reporting every dollar and every penny that cones
across."

8:10: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO said one issue, which he knows is not
addressed under HB 65, is the requirenent to disclose the incone
of a child under age 18, who is living in the hone of the person
filling out the disclosure, even if the child' s inconme is not a
substantial anount. He said he has never felt that s
informati on that needs to be nmade publi c.

8:10: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES remarked that she thinks the proposed bill
is "just the tip of the iceberg in relation to APOC issues."

8:11: 23 AM

JOAN M ZE, Project Coordinator, Regulation of Lobbying, Juneau
Ofice, A aska Public Ofices Commssion (APOC), offered her
understanding that the disclosure laws were first changed in
1998. The deadline at that time was April 15  and one
suggestion was to change it to February 15, so that the public
could have disclosures before the end of session; however, the
date settled on was Mrch 15, because md-February was not
enough time for people to get their tax information in January
and have their disclosures prepared so soon after that. I n
response to Representative Keller, she offered her understanding
that during the discussion back in 1998, there was one person
who wanted to have the date set in May; however, she indicated
that the general consensus was that May was too far off from
when the public would want the information nmade avail abl e.

8:14: 47 AM

M5. MZE, regarding Representative Keller's previous conmrent
about the definition of "income", stated that there is a
definition in the Act. She deferred to the executive director

of APOC for further questions.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 27, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered his understanding that soneone
serving on a board or comm ssion who, for exanple, owns a smal
flying service, wuld be required by APOC to report each
custoner's nane and check information, even though the check is
incone for the purposes of determning tax, but 1is not
necessarily profit. He remarked on the amobunt of work it takes
to wite all that information down. Further, he said sone of
that information is proprietary.

8:16: 58 AM

PAUL DAUPHI NAI'S, Executive Director, Al aska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), clarified that many of the issues on the
public official and legislative financial disclosure forns are
in ranges, and sonme of those are quite broad. He said "incone"
is defined in AS 24.60.990(a)(7), which read as foll ows:

(7) "inconme" nmeans an asset that a person has
received or expects to receive, regardless of whether
it is earned or unearned; inheritances and other gifts
are not inconeg;

MR. DAUPHI NAIS remarked that when the recording date follows a
| egi sl ative session, people who file can get busy and forget
t hings, which he said he thinks is part of the reason that the
date got noved up. In response to Representative Keller, M.
Dauphinais clarified that the statute is AS 24.60.997(a)(7), and
offered that 2 AAC 50.990 contains the definition of incone
referred to in the aforenentioned statute. He said he does not
know how that relates to the tax code or the Departnment of
Revenue.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he was interested in seeing this
change, but did not want to hold the bill up. He recognized
that HB 65 would be heard by the House Judiciary Standing
Conmittee and said he would look into the matter before that
tinme. He welcomed input from M. Dauphinais regarding the
definition because he surmsed that working on the definition
woul d result in making the executive director's job easier.

8:20: 56 AM
The commttee took an at-ease from8:21 a.m to 8:26 a.m

8:26: 00 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 27, 2015



M5. LUCKY, to Representative Keller, offered her understanding
that it is the self-enploynent section of the disclosure where
each individual client is listed; therefore, she said she was

not sure that <changing gross to net would fix that. She
recommended clarifying what the problem is to create a nore
accurate solution to it. She said she understands the concern

that "reports won't be out before the beginning of session;"”
however, she rem nded everyone that "there is an annual report
or a 30-day report that is already on file for each individual."

8:27:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expressed willingness to not propose an
amendnent if the sponsor would be wlling to work with the
committee and Legislative Legal and Research Services to define
"income" to reflect actual profit and to elimnate the need to
list every client.

M5. LUCKY indicated that the sponsor would be amenable to doing
t hat .

8:28:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to an amendnent in
the conmttee packet, |abeled, "29-LS0070\A.2, Wayne, 1/26/15,"
[which becane Amendnment 1], and expressed his wish to have
Representati ve Vazquez' nane added on it with his own.

8:29:01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ presented Amendnent 1, which read as
fol |l ows:

Page 1, line 9:

Delete "April 30"
I nsert "May 15"
Page 2, line 29:

Del ete "April 30"

| nsert "May 15"
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he woul d object for the purpose of
di scussi on. He said Section 3 of HB 65 deals with non-el ected
people. He said he thinks it would be easier for APOC and "nost
folks" to have one date rather than two different ones. He

expl ained that is why Amendnent 1 would nmake the change in both
pl aces. He offered his understanding that AS 24.60.120(b) is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 27, 2015



the statute that outlines when public nenbers of the Legislative
Conmittee on Ethics file their disclosures, and he recollected
that their filing date is the first week of January. He said
that may a subject to consider in the next conmttee of
referral

8:31:31 AM

JERRY ANDERSON, Adm nistrator, Select Commttee on Legislative
Ethics, regarding the comments from Representative G uenberg,
said if APOC has a public nmenber being confirned, the conm ssion
has an LFD on file prior to any appointnent date which is why
t hey have an earlier date.

8:32: 59 AM
REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked M. Anderson if he thinks "that

line" would satisfy the need of the Select Conmittee on
Legi sl ati ve Ethics.

MR. ANDERSON answered yes. He added, "I think a change to
another date could work; it just wrks now because of that
confirmation process for our public nmenbers.” He clarified that

he would not take issue with either date.
8:33:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ noved to adopt Anmendnent 1 [text provided
previ ously].

CHAI R LYNN announced that there being no objection, Amendnent 1
was adopt ed.

8:34: 28 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that HB 65, [as anended], was hel d over.
8:35:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed his gratitude for being
assigned to the House State Affairs Standing Commttee after a
t wo- year hi at us.

8:35:45 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 27, 2015



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 8:36
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 27, 2015



